
 

 

 
 

MENDOCINO-LAKE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
CITIZENS’ BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

Tuesday, February 3, 2015 
 5:00 PM 

Mendocino College   
1000 Hensley Creek Road, Ukiah CA 95482 

Room 1060 
 
 
 

 
 CALL TO ORDER  

 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENTS 
This time is set aside for general public comments.  Additionally, comments may be made at time of discussion of any item.  
After being recognized by the Chair, those wishing to make comments are asked to stand at the podium, state their name, place 
of residence and affiliation, if any, and address their comments to the Committee Chair.  Committee members may ask questions 
of the speaker for clarification but will not generally discuss items that are not on the agenda.  If appropriate, they may refer the 
subject to College staff for research or for the item to be placed on a subsequent agenda. 
 

1. Approval of Agenda 

  
2. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting held on August 5, 2014 
  
3.  Quarterly Bond Reports  
  Measure W Bond Program Quarterly Status Report – December 31, 2014 

 Measure W Bond Program Financial Activity Report – October 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 
 

   
4.  Annual External Audit Reports  
  Performance Audit – June 30, 2014 

 Financial Audit – June 30, 2014
 

   

5. Schedule final meeting of Measure W Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 
  

 

6. Future Agenda Items  

   

7. ADJOURNMENT  
 

 
ADA Compliance: Persons with disabilities needing assistance, please notify the Superintendent/President's Office at 468-3071 no 
later than 24 hours prior to the scheduled meeting.  Meetings are held in locations which are wheelchair accessible. 
 

Agenda Packet and Supporting Documents Notice:  The agenda packet and supporting materials can be viewed in the President’s 
Office, Room 1070, Mendocino College, 1000 Hensley Creek Road, Ukiah CA. 

 

  
Future Meeting Dates:  
Proposed:  Tuesday, June 9, 2015 – Ukiah Campus, 1000 Hensley Creek Road, Ukiah, CA –Room 1060 - 5:00 PM  
 



  Item #2 
 

1 
 

MENDOCINO-LAKE COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CITIZEN’S BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

 
A regular meeting of the Mendocino-Lake Community College District Citizens’ Bond 
Oversight Committee (CBOC) was convened on Tuesday, August 5, 2014, Mendocino College, 
1000 Hensley Creek Road, Ukiah, California. 
 
GENERAL MATTERS 
 
Call To Order 
 

The meeting was called to order at 5:08PM by acting President Richard Cooper.  

Members Tami Bartolomei absent 
Diane L. Clatty absent 
Matt Cockerton present 
Richard Cooper present 
Charlie Kelly present 
Charley Myers present 
Wade Koeninger present 

 
Staff 
Representatives 
 

Eileen Cichocki, Vice President of Administrative Services 
Steve Oliveria, Director of Maintenance and Operations 
Shaun Hoffman, Part-Time Temporary Bond Office Assistant 
 

Support Staff 
 

Mary Lamb, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent/President 

Public Comments 
 

There were no comments from the public. 

Agenda Approval 
 

M/S/C (Cockerton/Koeninger) hereby approves the agenda as presented.  The 
agenda was approved with a 5-0 vote. 
 

Minutes/Approval 
 
 
 

M/S/C (Cockerton/Cooper) hereby approves the minutes of the regular meeting 
held on February 4, 2014 as submitted.  The minutes were approved with a 5-0 
vote. 

Organization:  
Committee 
membership, 
officers, terms, by-
laws, and meeting 
dates 
 

Committee membership 
 
Vice President Cichocki introduced Charlie Kelly as the newest member of the 
Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee representing the Taxpayer Association.  
Charlie comes to the committee with many hours of volunteer experience and 
has participated in many organizations and on many committees over the past 30 
years while residing in Ukiah. 
 
The current terms of Business representative Tami Bartolomei and Member-At-
Large Matt Cockerton expired at the end of June 2014.  As the Measure W Bond 
funding is winding down and hearing no objections from those members present, 
the following action was taken: 
 



  Item #2 
 

2 
 

M/S/C (Cockerton/Myers) to extend the terms of representative Bartolomei and 
member Cockerton until June 2015.  This action was passed with a 5-0 vote of 
the committee. 
 
Committee Officers 
After discussion and hearing no objections the following action was taken: 
M/S/C (Koeninger/Myers) to re-elect Tami Bartolomei committee President and 
Diane Clatty committee Vice President for the 2014-15 year.  This action was 
passed with a 5-0 vote of the committee.   
 
Meeting Dates 
Vice President Cichocki conveyed to the committee that she is not anticipating a 
large volume of activity in the next few months as the final projects are closed.  
If she is correct, the meeting currently scheduled for November 4, 2014 may be 
cancelled.  The final meeting would still be held in February 2015.  
 
Committee Recognition 
Committee member Koeninger brought up the idea of recognizing the entire 
committee at some sort of event once all the projects are completed.  He would 
also like to see Carolyn Pryor and Mike Adams specifically recognized for all 
their hard work on the various projects.   
 
M/S/C (Koeninger/Kelly) to recognize Carolyn Pryor and Mike Adams for all 
their work on the various Measure W projects.  The motion passed with a 5-0 
vote.  
 
With this in mind, Foundation member Cooper stated he will check with the 
county representatives about getting a proclamation from them which recognizes 
Mr. Adams and Ms. Pryor.     
 

Quarterly Bond 
Reports 

Vice President Cichocki introduced Steve Oliveria, Director of Maintenance and 
Operations and Shaun Hoffman, part-time temporary Bond Office Assistant, 
who has been working closely with both Steve and herself in closing the various 
projects since Carolyn Pryor’s departure from the college.   
 
Vice President Cichocki shared with the committee the work on the Hensley 
Creek Road project is now complete and is the last large project to be covered by 
the Bond funds.  The remaining monies showing on the financials from other 
campus infrastructure projects will be transferred to the road project in order to 
minimize the amount of general fund liability as we will have spent all of the 
Measure W Bond funds.  This will include the monies showing in the Nursing 
project which is now complete.  We are also completing the conversion of a 
couple of classrooms in MacMillan Hall to make them into more functional 
classrooms for the larger student population.  
 
The June 30, 2014 figures reflected on the financial documentation presented 
has not yet been finalized and encumbrances could be lower and expenses higher 



  Item #2 
 

3 
 

once the process is completed.  The auditors were here the week of July 21, 2014 
and reviewed the Bond funds as well and found nothing out of the ordinary.  We 
use Matson and Isom to complete our audits with the bond funds being reviewed 
twice a year. 
 
Foundation member Cooper stated that these are the same auditors that are used 
by the Foundation. 
 

Report to the 
Community 

Vice President Cichocki asked the pleasure of the committee regarding how they 
would like the committee listing be shown on the report to the community.  The 
consensus of the committee is it should include Al Beltrami as in memoriam.  
She also stated the current plan is the information will be published as part of a 
“Back to School” ad.  Vice President Cichocki will double check to be sure the 
information is posted in the Willits News and Lake County newspaper as well. 
 

Future Agenda 
Items 
 

At this time, the November meeting may be cancelled but will be held if needed. 
There is a possibility the auditors could complete a shorter term audit followed 
by a final audit after everything is complete if the committee members would 
prefer. 
 
If the committee decides it will hold an event once all the projects are complete, 
we should include all members of committee over the time of the Measure W 
project.  Committee member Koeninger noted that the new Director of 
Community Relations and Communication, Jessica Silva would be a great 
person to be involved with this project.  Committee member Cooper also added 
that Mendo-Lake Credit Union may be able to help with the cost of food, etc.  
 
Committee member Koeninger asked that we make sure to report out all the final 
information to the community once everything has been finalized and 
completed.   
 

Adjournment M/S/C (Koeninger/Kelly) RESOLVED, That the Mendocino-Lake Community 
College District Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee does hereby adjourn the 
meeting at 5:39 PM.  
 

 Submitted by:    
 Mary Lamb, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent/President 

 
 



  Item #3 
 

 
 

 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
 
As of December 31, 2014 all Measure W bond funds have been expended. 
 
Per the Citizen’s Bond Oversight Committee By-laws, Section 11, Termination, “The Committee 
shall automatically terminate and disband 180 days following the date when all bond proceeds 
have spent.”  Therefore, this committee will end June 30, 2015. 
 
We have been in contact with legal counsel and auditors on closing out the Measure W bond 
program.   The external auditors are going to prepare the final audits, covering the period of July 
1, 2014 to December 31, 2014.  The final audits will be presented to CBOC at a meeting prior to 
June 30, 2015.  CBOC will then make its final report to the Board of Trustees and to the 
community.  When the Board of Trustees accepts the final report, the CBOC would be 
disbanded.  
 
Timeline: 
 
February - May 2015:   Audit conducted of 7/1/14 to 12/31/14 expenditures 
 
June 2015:   CBOC accepts final audit 
    CBOC final report presented to Board of Trustees 
    CBOC final Report to the Community 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Information on the bond program is updated regularly on the Measure W web site: 
www.mendocino.edu/bond 

 

MEASURE W “Opening Doors for Student Success!” 

 

Measure W Bond Program 
Quarterly Status Report 

December 2014



  Item #3

 

 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 
 
 
Board of Trustees 
Joel Clark, President • Hopland 
John Tomkins, Vice President • Lakeport 
Edward Haynes, Clerk • Ukiah 
Paul Ubelhart • Willits 
Janet Chaniot • Potter Valley 
Joan M. Eriksen • Ukiah 
Dave Geck • Kelseyville 
Nayeli Castaneda • Student Trustee 
 
Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 
Tami Bartolomei, Business Representative • Ukiah 
Richard Cooper, Foundation Representative • Ukiah 
Charley Myers, Senior Citizens’ Organization Representative • Redwood Valley 
Charlie Kelly, Taxpayer Association • Ukiah 
 

At-Large members: 
Diane Clatty • Redwood Valley 
Matt Cockerton • Lakeport 
Wade Koeninger • Ukiah 
 
Bond Implementation Planning Committee 
Eileen Cichocki, VP of Administrative Services • BIPC Chair 
Arturo Reyes, Superintendent/President 
Karen Christopherson, Director of Information Technology  
Barbara French, Director of Nursing (Faculty member) 
Virginia Guleff, Vice President of Education and Student Services 
John Koetzner, Head Librarian (Faculty member) 
John Loucks, Telecommunications Technician (Classified member) 
Steve Oliveria, Director of Maintenance and Operations 
 
 
 
 

 

Measure W Bond Program 
Quarterly Status Report 

December 2014 



PROJECTS A B C D E F G H

Line 
No. Project No. Project Name

Original Project 
Bond Budget

Original Match 
Estimates

Total Original 
Project Budget

Current Project 
Budget

Prior 
Expenditures 
Thru 6/30/14

14/15 
Expenditures 

YTD

Total 
Expenditures 

and 
Encumbrances Balance Comments

Line 
No.

1 717010 Disabled Access Improvements 500,000$         500,000$            151,213$            151,213$          -$                    151,213$          -$                     1

2 717020 Energy Projects 751,793$            751,793$          -$                    751,793$          -$                     2
3 717000 •Campus Lighting 135,000$         45,000$         180,000$            -$                    -$                    -$                      -$                     3
4 717030 Flooring Replacement 400,000$         400,000$            236,047$            218,138$          17,909$          236,047$          -$                     4
5 717040 HVAC Upgrades and Additions 337,500$         112,500$       450,000$            318,542$            318,542$          -$                    318,542$          -$                     5
6 717050 Other Campus Infrastructure 1,000,000$      1,000,000$         1,355,905$         880,969$          474,936$        1,355,905$       -$                     6
7 717060 Point Arena Field Station 1,000,000$      1,000,000$         153,437$            153,437$          -$                    153,437$          -$                     7
8 717070 Renovation for Instructional & Student Services Expansion 300,000$         300,000$            496,156$            496,156$          -$                    496,156$          -$                     8
9 717080 Replace Instructional Equipment 450,000$         450,000$            477,426$            477,426$          -$                    477,426$          -$                     9

10 717090 Solar Technology 3,750,000$      1,250,000$    5,000,000$         1,427,198$         1,427,198$       -$                    1,427,198$       -$                     Plus muni-lease funds 10
11 717100 Technology Upgrades in Classrooms 400,000$         400,000$            298,449$            298,449$          -$                    298,449$          -$                     11
12 717110 Re-roof Court Center Buildings 77,850$           77,850$              75,036$              75,036$            -$                    75,036$            -$                     12
13 717120 Re-roof Agriculture Headhouse 60,000$           60,000$              59,441$              59,441$            -$                    59,441$            -$                     13
14 717130 Re-roof Center for Visual and Performing Arts 650,000$         650,000$            333,010$            333,010$          -$                    333,010$          -$                     14
15 717140 Re-roof Child Care Center 70,000$           70,000$              45,624$              45,624$            -$                    45,624$            -$                     15
16 717150 Re-roof Physical Education Building 600,000$         600,000$            454,327$            454,327$          -$                    454,327$          -$                     16
17 717160 Re-roof Voc/Tech Building 200,000$         200,000$            199,607$            199,607$          -$                    199,607$          -$                     17
18 717170 Allied Health/Nursing Facility 6,000,000$      6,000,000$         2,307,304$         2,307,304$       -$                    2,307,304$       -$                     18
19 717180 Athletic Field Improvements and Renovation 600,000$         600,000$            750,664$            750,664$          -$                    750,664$          -$                     19
20 717190 Library/Learning Center 7,500,000$      7,500,000$    15,000,000$       23,795,796$       23,784,192$     11,604$          23,795,796$     -$                     20
21 717200 Student Center/Cafeteria (renovate current Library Bldg.) 4,000,000$      4,000,000$         3,914,335$         3,914,335$       -$                    3,914,335$       -$                     21
22 717230 •Soccer Field 380,000$         380,000$            -$                    -$                      -$                    -$                      -$                     22
23 717210 Maintenance/Warehouse/East Campus Project 1,500,000$      1,500,000$    3,000,000$         4,698,153$         4,698,153$       -$                    4,698,153$       -$                     Incl. Projects 717250 & 717290 23
24 717250 •Scheduled Maintenance Funds for New Buildings 3,000,000$      3,000,000$         -$                    -$                      -$                    -$                      -$                     Combined into #717210 24
25 717290 •Parking Lot Expansion and Upgrades 1,000,000$      1,000,000$         -$                    -$                      -$                    -$                      -$                     Combined into #717210 25
26 717220 Media/Computer Graphics Lab 100,000$         100,000$            93,977$              93,977$            -$                    93,977$            -$                     26
27 717240 Modernize Vocational Program Facilities and Equipment 530,000$         530,000$            521,886$            484,865$          37,021$          521,886$          -$                     27
28 717270 Enterprise Resource Planning and Network Upgrade 6,000,000$      6,000,000$         4,681,210$         4,667,235$       13,975$          4,681,210$       -$                     28
29 •717280 •Distance Education Technology 400,000$         400,000$            -$                    -$                      -$                    -$                      -$                     Combined into #717190 29
30 717300 Lake Center 15,000,000$    15,000,000$       13,645,225$       13,645,225$     -$                    13,645,225$     -$                     30
31 717310 Willits/North County Center 8,000,000$      8,000,000$         6,879,146$         6,868,959$       10,187$          6,879,146$       -$                     31
32 717320 Bond Project Management 1,999,576$         1,988,792$       10,784$          1,999,576$       -$                     32

33 Project Totals 63,940,350$    10,407,500$  74,347,850$       70,120,483$       69,544,067$     576,416$        70,120,483$     -$                     33

34 Unallocated Program Reserve 3,559,650$      3,559,650$         34

35 Program Total 67,500,000$    10,407,500$  77,907,500$       70,120,483$       69,544,067$     576,416$        70,120,483$     -$                     35

36 Other Program Revenues—Interest Earnings 2,620,691$         2,620,691$       -$                    -$                      Interest Income 36

Mendocino-Lake Community College District
Measure W Bond Program

Through December 31, 2014
Projects Financial Summary Activity Report































































  Item #5 

 

Termination and Disbanding of Measure W Citizens’ Bond Oversight Committee 
 
As of December 31, 2014 all Measure W bond funds have been expended. 
 
Per the Citizen’s Bond Oversight Committee By-laws, Section 11, Termination, “The Committee shall 
automatically terminate and disband 180 days following the date when all bond proceeds have spent.”  
Therefore, this committee will end June 30, 2015. 
 
We have been in contact with legal counsel and auditors on closing out the Measure W bond program.   
The external auditors are going to prepare the final audits, covering the period of July 1, 2014 to 
December 31, 2014.  The final audits will be presented to CBOC at a meeting prior to June 30, 2015.  
CBOC will then make its final report to the Board of Trustees and to the community.  When the Board of 
Trustees accepts the final report, the CBOC would be disbanded.  
 
Timeline: 
 
February - May 2015:   Audits conducted of 7/1/14 to 12/31/14 expenditures 
   Matson & Isom has merged with another firm and renamed KCoe Isom 
 
June 2015:  CBOC accepts final audits 
   CBOC final report presented to Board of Trustees 
   CBOC final Report to the Community 
 
Proposed next and final CBOC meeting date:   
 
Tuesday, June 9, 2015 – Ukiah Campus, 1000 Hensley Creek Road, Ukiah, CA – Room 1060 – 5pm 


	Final Financial Summary-12-31-14.pdf
	Financial Summary




